
 

 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday March 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the March 6th, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.  
Please use the podium to address the board.  

b. Mail  • York County Sheriff February Report          
c. Complaints 

 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 2/21/2023. 

 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #39 in the amount of $25,330.22 
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #38 (FY2023) in the amount of $591,847.98 

 

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Annual Town Report Dedication  
b. Review Audio Video Recording Equipment Use policy. Tabled from last meeting. 
c. IT Contracting services – RFP. Discuss timelines. Tabled from last meeting.  
d. ARPA funding – discuss RFPs. 
e. Franchise agreement – discuss setting up a workshop with Tony.  

 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
a. Road Commissioner –  
b. Ordinance Review Committee – Question regarding Comprehensive Plan.  
c. Fire Chief –  
d. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Karen Kane 
e. Tax Clerk -  
f. CEO – Review/approve Tree cutting permit. 
g. Treasurer – Expense Report 3-2-23 
h. Town Hall Expansion Committee –  
i. Other  -  

 
ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 

a. YMCA Contract amendment request, see email. Discuss setting up a workshop. 
b. Handicap Ramp for side door, discuss approval for funds.  
c. Parks and Recs Field Use Request Form – Review/Approve 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

OTHER 
ADJOURN 



ITEM #2: (b.) Mail



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday February 21, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 
David Alves (Via Zoom), Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts  
Selectboard members absent: none. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (E) Attorney/ legal matters
Thomas Hatch - Makes a motion to go into executive session per 1.M.R.S.A. 405(e) Attorney/ Legal matters.
Jessica Picard - Seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 5-0-0

Jessica Picard - Makes a motion to come out of executive session. 
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion.  
Motion passes: 5-0-0 

Thomas Hatch - Makes a motion to authorize the CEO and Town Attorney to file a land use complaint 
against the property at 296 Wadleigh Pond Rd and also allow the Town Attorney to contact the property 
owner to discuss resolutions.  
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. 
Motion passes: 5-0-0 

Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to have a public hearing scheduled to initiate the process to declare a 
portion of the Old Kennebunk Road abandoned per 23 M.R.S. 3028-A. 
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Tony Vigue – Franchise agreement

David Alves – Asks why this agreement has been taking so long and if it has anything to do
with Charter avoiding paying the five percent franchise fee.
Toney Vigue – Explains the cable company hasn’t been holding this up because of the
franchise fee because the Town can give them written notice and ask them to pay the fees.
He’s sent the board his outline of what the board needs to be aware of and decide weather
or not if they agree. More than likely, they don’t want regulation from the Town or at least
very little as possible. Your old Franchise will stay in place until a new agreement is signed.
He recommends scheduling a workshop to go over the suggested changes he’s outlined and
review ordinances/regulations the Town would want. The current franchise allows the
board to write the cable company a letter asking them to pay the franchise fee, which they
have done at the beginning of this process, however Charter suggested to work on revising
the agreement instead.
John Tibbetts – Asks about the limits on collecting the Franchise fee and how payment is
made by Charter.

DRAFT
ITEM #3: Minutes



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday February 21, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

Tony Vigue – Explains Charter passes it to the subscribers; however the Town has no limits 
on how they can use the fees once they are collected. The Town can charge anything up to 
five percent if that’s what they choose. Whether or not the Town charges a fee, the cable 
company will increase their rates and keep with market increases. The fees are a small 
amount compared to their annual increases. The franchise fee may keep them from 
increasing the rates too much because they will want to keep market trends so as not to 
lose subscribers to rate hikes.  
Brad Morin – States the board could pass an ordinance in accordance with state statute and 
he suggests possibly working on getting the agreement close to finalized then mirror the 
ordinance to the agreement.  
Tony Vigue – States that is a possibility. In one case South Portland passed their ordinance 
then finalized their Franchise agreement and it worked out, however with Sebago, they 
passed an ordinance and are now dealing with issues getting Charter to negotiate an 
agreement because of the ordinance. He recommends sending back to Charter the Towns 
revision and work on the franchise agreement. 
Jessica Picard – Asks if state statute on enacting a franchise ordinance supersedes the 
Towns charter. 
Brad Morin – States this is correct, and he will connect with Tony Vigue to go over some of 
the revisions in the meantime.  

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board.

Please use the podium to address the board.
Don Hernon – States the Planning Board is currently working on a proposed change to the
Towns Zoning Ordinance for contract zoning. It will be the same wording that was agreed
upon in August of 2022. They will have a public hearing regarding the changes on March
15th and send their proposal to the Select Board. The Planning Board agreed to put this to
annual town meeting to be voted on. He also proposes recommended changes to the new
Town Charter to revise the definition of “general election” regarding ordinances being
amended every two years. He recommends taking the word “general election” out of the
ordinance amendment section in the new charter and voting on this at Annual Town
Meeting. His only concern is there may not be enough voting members in accordance with
state statute regarding charter revisions/amendments which would need approximately
740 votes.
Pauline Weiss – States municipal election is scheduled for June 13th. Nomination papers will
be available March 6th and due back to the Clerk’s office by April 14th, 4:00pm. There are
two Select Board seats, two budget committee, one three-year RSU 57 School Board, and
on one-year RSU 57 School Board member.
Michelle Feliccitti – States the term “general election” was placed in the new charter
because there are not many ordinances that get passed every year and there seems to be
little public awareness when ordinances do get passed.

b. Mail •Historical Society, Budget Expense Report
c. Complaints - none

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday February 21, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 1/18/2023

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to approve. John Tibbetts Seconds. Motion passes: 4-0-1
(David Alves abstains).

b. Review / Approve meeting minutes 2/6/2023
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to approve. David Alves seconds. Motion passes: 3-0-2
(Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts abstains).

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #36 in the amount of $23,889.33

David Alves – Makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #37 (FY2023) in the amount of $104,591.68

David Alves – Makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Discuss procedure around lock box and key.

Lindsay Gagne – States this lockbox device works with Bluetooth on cell phones to gain
access to the lockbox and will track user access. You can also set parameters on days and
time frames when a user can have access. It cost less than $200.00 and the treasurer has
verified funds available to purchase.
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to purchase this lockbox.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

b. Bunganut Park Memo
Ralph Blackington -States we should do a workshop to go over this. He is going to talk with
MUSC on making sure we are getting donations for the ball field use.

c. Transfer Station ARPA funds – RFP. Discuss timelines.
David Alves – Suggests the board finalize what the ARPA committee recommended and
allocate the money.
Thomas Hatch – States his recommendation is to accept the ARPA committee
recommendations and complete the tasks in sequence from the Transfer Station, to
Bunganut, to Kennebunk Pond Beach.
David Alves – States all the projects can go concurrently.
Thomas Hatch – States there should be some flexibility until we know what costs will come
at and what types of needs are determined.
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to accept the ARPA committee’s recommendation of
projects starting with Transfer Station first, Bunganut second, and Kennebunk Pond third,
and the board having flexibility to manage money as needed as we have savings in one
area being able to use it in another area.
David Alves – asks for clarification are we still giving each project a specific amount of
money or are we putting everything into one pot?
Jessica Picard – States she understands it as prioritizing the projects and the board can
determine necessity of certain tasks considering costs if they come in too high. She

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday February 21, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

suggests putting all bids out with the same due date and look at all the expenses coming 
in. Bunganut may be challenging because of timing issues.  
David Alves – States this could disrupt funding for the other projects if for example the 
first priority comes in higher in expenses.  
Thomas Hatch – Suggests with Brad Nikel working on Transfer Station and David Alves 
working on Kennebunk Pond he would be willing to volunteer for Bunganut to spread the 
workload.  
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion.  
Motion passes: 4-1-0 (Ralph Blackington, Thomas Hatch, Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts in 
favor; David Alves opposed).  

d. IT Contracting services – RFP. Discuss timelines.
Jessica Picard – Suggests tabling the item to the next agenda for further review.

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner –

Brad Nikel – States all the roads in Town are posted. He will be issuing special heavy load
permits. States we have two crosswalk signs at the transfer station that can be installed at
the Kennebunk Pond, but we have been having difficulties finding resources on the DOT
grant for the installation of the signs.

b. Fire Chief – none
c. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Dave Alves Liaison Report/update - none
d. Treasurer – Expense Summary Report 2-16-23 - reviewed.
e. CEO – none
f. Tax Clerk – none
g. Town Hall Expansion Committee –

Brad Nikel – States he has some quotes for the survey.
David Alves – He spoke with the draftsman who agreed to donate his time to the time,
however he cannot do the permitting. He’s contacted an architect who will put together a
proposal.

h. Other  - none

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Review Audio Video Recording Equipment Use policy.

Jessica Picard - Suggests tabling the item to the next agenda for further review.
b. Assessor request for Board of Assessment Review

Jessica Picard – Suggests following charter provisions and the board will need to elect their
own secretary. There is discussion among the board and the board agrees.

c. Review Committee Application received for Local Health Officer
Jessica Picard – Asks if there should be an interviewing process with this because there is
paid stipend.
Thomas Hatch – Agrees this is a good idea and can work with Lindsay on the who and when.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday February 21, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

d. Town Clean Up day – Organizer is seeking suggestions/recommendations.
Jessica Picard – States the Lyman Elementary PT Chair and Matt Duross are working on
putting this together this year. They were looking for suggestions or input they are open to
it. The tentative date is scheduled for April 22nd.

e. Review / Approve Purchase Order. Assessor Training – Reviewed in meeting.

OTHER 

ADJOURN 

Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to adjourn. 
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington (Chair) 

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

_____________________________________________ 

David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

John Tibbetts 

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 5 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated February 21st, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne DRAFT



ITEM #4: (a.) Payroll





ITEM #4: (b.) AP Warrant













I would like to dedicate the town report to the Planning Board. Most of the members have been serving 
on the Board for many years , attending meetings, going on site walks and having public hearings. They 
are very devoted to our town and spend enormous amounts of time studying the applications and 
zoning.  

I think it would be nice to recognize the Cemetery Committee this year. The do more that the 

townspeople realize. 

My vote would be for all the employees at the Transfer station that keep our Transfer station flowing 

and all that they do for our citizens when they arrive there to dispose of their trash. No matter what the 

weather conditions are they are always there and keep it running smoothly. 

Louisa Nunan. She is our oldest remaining female Select Board member. She blazed the trail and has 

been a longtime resident.  

Brad Nikel. He truly is a treasure to the town and goes above and beyond in his work. He truly cares 

about the Town and is a wealth of knowledge.  

Shirly Harrison or Maurice St. Clair. 

ITEM #5: (a.) Suggestions for Annual Town Report Dedication 



TOWN OF LYMAN 

Audio / Video Equipment Use Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  1 | 3 

Adopted: Amended: 

PURPOSE:  The Town of Lyman provides audio / video streaming and recording equipment, 

such as computers and multimedia devices accessible to boards and/or committees to support 

live streaming and recording of public meetings. The purpose of this policy is to ensure 

appropriate use of Town-owned electronics, IT, and AV equipment, to protect the Town’s 

investment in hardware, and to maintain the security of the Town’s network.  

PROCEDURE: 

Any committee governed by the Town of Lyman may elect from within their committee to serve 

as a designated audio/video assistant/assignee. The AV assistant/assignee, upon approval from 

the select board, will be allowed to use the audio/video/ IT equipment solely for the purpose of 

streaming and recording the public meetings to which they are a member of same committee. 

The Select Board reserves the right to deny a request or remove that privilege for just cause. The 

Select Board office will maintain a record of approved assignees.   

USE OF EQUIPMENT/ RESPONSIBILITY: 

It is expected that all designated assignees, approved by the Select Board, who use IT/AV 

equipment including computers and multimedia devices agree to the following guidelines and 

rules. Violation of these guidelines and rules may result in revocation of authorization to use 

IT/AV equipment.  

o Any purchases and upgrades must be approved by the Select Board and any IT related

services are conducted by the Towns IT contractor. Any communication to the IT

contractor is strictly through the Select Board’s office.

o The designated assignee shall not remove or alter identification labels or tags attached to

or displayed on any equipment.

o Only software approved by the Select Board and owned by the Town of Lyman may be

installed on Town-owned computers/ media devices. All software must be installed by

the IT contractor. Illegal use or transfer of copyrighted materials is prohibited.

o The designated assignee agrees to handle all IT/AV equipment carefully and protect it

from potential sources of damage. The assignee also agrees to store all IT/AV equipment/

media devices in a safe and secure location or its designated location. If any loss,

damage, or destruction of Town property is determined to be at fault of the assignee, the

Town of Lyman may charge the assignee the cost of repairs or replacement at the Select

Boards discretion. If replacement of equipment is deemed necessary, then replacement of

ITEM #5: (b.) AV Equipment Use Policy



TOWN OF LYMAN 

Audio / Video Equipment Use Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  2 | 3 

equipment shall be equivalent to the most current, up to date version of 

device/software/hardware. 

o Any data that is hosted on the IT equipment is the responsibility of the assignee.

Assignees must take measures to securely protect any and all Town of Lyman data that

resides on Town-owned devices.

o Access to IT/AV equipment is not intended for personal use. Use of IT/AV equipment is

solely for the purpose to conduct business related to the Town of Lyman.

o Any troubleshooting/ issues will be reported to the select board clerk who will apprise the

IT contractor via support ticket for remedial action. No assignee is permitted to

independently correct any issues and/or defect of IT/AV equipment.

o The assignee agrees it is their responsibility to ensure that any aired content and/or

information while using the equipment is appropriate to the business of the Town of

Lyman only.

o No assignee shall grant access to Town-owned IT/AV equipment, multimedia devices, or

login credentials to any other individual not authorized by the Select Board. The assignee

will be given specific login credentials to access programs for the purpose of audio/video

streaming and recording of public meetings. Login credentials are restricted to Town-

Owned property and may not be shared with anyone or used on personal devices. Should

any login credentials be used by an unauthorized person at fault of the assignee, the

assignee will be liable for any damages to the Town.

o Assignees taking responsibility of IT/AV equipment provided by the Town of Lyman

agree to these conditions by acknowledgement of compliance and signing this form. The

use of IT/AV equipment is strictly for Town of Lyman operations.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

“I have read and will comply with all guidelines regarding Town of Lyman’s owned equipment. I have 

read and agree to abide by all Town of Lyman’s policies and regulations regarding the use of equipment. I 

will immediately report to the Select Boards office any damage that may occur to Town-owned 

equipment. I accept responsibility for all damage or loss delineated above to any equipment authorized for 

use. I understand that if equipment is lost, damaged, or stolen, I may be responsible for the replacement 

cost.”  

__________________________________ ________________________________ 

Print name Date 

__________________________________ 

Signature 



TOWN OF LYMAN 

Audio / Video Equipment Use Policy 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

P a g e  3 | 3 

Adopted:    

Effective:   Immediately 

______________________________________Ralph “Rusty” Blackington - Chair 

______________________________________Thomas Hatch – Vice Chair 

______________________________________John Tibbetts  

______________________________________David Alves 

______________________________________Jessica Picard 

A Majority of the Board of Selectpersons 

Lyman, Maine 



TOWN OF LYMAN 
11 South Waterboro Rd Lyman, ME 04002 

Tel: (207)-499-7562  FAX: (207)-499-7563 

Email: selectboard@lyman-me.gov 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
Remote Managed Services Provider 

The Town of Lyman is requesting proposals from qualified consultants to provide Managed IT services. 

The intention of this RFP is to solicit responses and formal proposals from qualified Managed Service 

Providers (MSPs) and select a single organization to provide IT services to the Town of Lyman.  

The Town of Lyman is requesting information about your company and the IT products and solutions 

you provide as outlined in the Service Requirements. This document does not commit the Town of 

Lyman to any contract for any service, supply, or subscription whatsoever. The Town of Lyman will not 

reimburse any information or administrative costs incurred as a result of participation in response to the 

RFP. All costs associated with response will solely reside at the responding party’s expense.  

Please submit your proposal in a sealed envelope to the Town of Lyman by ________ on 

_____________. Proposals must be addressed to: 

Select Board 

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

Please mark sealed proposals plainly “RFP: Remote Managed Services”. Proposals will be opened 

publicly at the Select Board meeting on __________. The Town will not except late bids.  

Questions regarding this request for proposal should be directed via email to: 

selectboard@lyman-me.gov  

ITEM #5: (c.) IT RFP

mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov


Technical Environmental Overview 

The following is a general overview that outlines broad demographics of the Town of Lyman and current 

technical environment.  

• Two office/service locations in Lyman, ME

• Approximately 20 employees and additional limited-term elected officials

• Windows PC environment, approximately 21 laptop, desktop, tablet, mobile devices

• 2 Servers, 8 network devices.

• Microsoft Office 365

• Local and Remote cloud backups

• Print Scan, Fax, Copy devices on site.

• GWI Hosted PBX Polycom VVX 410 Phone System

• Web hosting and social media

• Audio/Video streaming and recording of public proceedings.

• IT committee, to be established July 2023

Service Requirements 

As part of this RFP, The Town of Lyman has requirements for the following services. We realize that not 

every MSP will be able to provide all the services listed below, but we encourage you to respond 

regardless.  

Helpdesk Support - The MSP should offer superior 24/7/365 help desk support and offer remote access 

client support.  

Server & networking system monitoring – The MSP must provide 24/7 monitoring of the Town of 

Lyman’s server and network system with proactive communication and escalation protocols based on 

the severity of any unscheduled outages.  

Patch Management Services & Preventative Maintenance – The MSP must provide management of 

critical security and system patches to all servers and systems on the network to ensure the Town of 

Lyman IT system and resources are properly managed and maintained.  

Business Continuity and IT Disaster Recovery – The MSP must be able to support the Town of Lyman’s 

ability to recover based on the Recovery Time Objective (RTO) and Recovery Point Objective (RPO) 

agreed upon by organizational constituents. In addition, backup and redundancy should be used to 

support this need.  

Remote Backup – The MSP must execute a routine backup plan for critical servers, including a regularly-

tested recovery process.  

Email System Management – The Town of Lyman requires the management and administration of the 

Town’s email system for all users.  

Antivirus, Antispam & Antispyware Protection – The Town of Lyman is looking for solutions to defend 

against security threats including phishing, malware, spam, viruses.  



On Site Support – When needed, the MSP should have the ability to deploy onsite resources to assist in 

issues which cannot be resolved through remote access to in-house systems.  

Networking Support – The Town of Lyman requires proactive management and monitoring of our 

switches, firewalls, routers and wi-fi systems, and other networking equipment as identified by the 

Town of Lyman.  

Security Systems Monitoring – MSP must provide proactive monitoring and management of the Town 

of Lyman’s security systems, including firewalls, intrusion prevention, secure remote access, and any 

implementations of advanced security solutions the Town may utilize.  

Vendor Management – The MSP should be able to manage other vendors which may be contracted for 

by the Town of Lyman and serve as a key point of contact unless escalated.  

Warranty and Asset Inventory Management – The Town of Lyman expects the MSP to maintain a 

hardware and asset inventory that includes desktops, laptops, servers, printers/scanners, fax machines, 

mobiles, tablets, and notify the Town of Lyman of any potential service or warranty issues. The MSP 

must also assist with managing the lifecycle of the Towns devices and maintain an equipment inventory 

to ensure our systems are always current.  

Software Licensing Control – Oversight of automatic renewal of software applications and maintenance 

of appropriate documentation.  

Procurement Management – The MSP must assist with the selection of commercially rated equipment, 

order placement, order tracking, shipping, equipment returns, and sourcing and ordering of 

replacement parts.  

PC Deployment – Delivery and set up of machines on site. 

Desktop and Laptop Support – MSPs must include their ability to support existing and future desktop 

and laptop hardware. This includes maintenance and repair, replacement for failed equipment, and 

acquisition and provisioning of new equipment as needed.  

Printers, Copiers, Scanners and Fax Machines Support – The MSP must include their ability to support 

existing printers, copiers, scanners, fax machines and scanner related network-printer issues.  

Break Fixes and Installation – The MSP should offer planned and on-call break/fix services, including 

emergency response to server issues.  

Vulnerability Testing – The MSP should offer vulnerability tests, both internally and externally, to 

determine what flaws and potential threats exist from outside, or perimeter of the Town of Lyman’s 

business network. 

Audio Video services and management – The MSP should have the ability to assist with audio video 

recording equipment and software programs.  

Special Projects – MSP may be requested to provide additional support and/or consultation in 

conjunction with an established IT committee regarding special projects as deemed necessary by the 

Town of Lyman.  



Conditions and Instructions to Bidders 

1. Bidders shall use the enclosed bid form.

2. Proposals must be completed in full and must be signed by a firm official or representative. Proposals
may be withdrawn prior to the time set for the official opening.

3. Proposals will be opened publicly. Bidders or representatives may be present at opening.

4. Issuance of this RFP and receipt of proposals does not commit the Town to award a contract. The
Town reserves the right to postpone receipt date, accepting or rejecting any or all proposals received in
response to this RFP, or to negotiate with any of the consultants/firms submitting an RFP, or to cancel all
or part of this RFP.

5. The Town is exempt from payment of Federal Excise Taxes on the articles not for resale, Federal
Transportation Tax on all shipments and Maine Sales Tax and Use Taxes. Please quote less these taxes.
Upon application, exemption certificate will be furnished with the Purchase Order when required.

6. No contract may be assigned without board approval and contract must be signed by at least three
members of the board.

7. Please state “RFP: Remote Managed Services”, on submitted, sealed envelope.

8. The Town of Lyman reserves the right to waive any formality and technicality, whichever is deemed
best for the interest of the Town.

9. The contract period for the successful consultant/firm will be _____________from the executed
contract date.

The Select Board will review sealed bids in an open public meeting and may, at the boards’ discretion, delay 
award pending further review. It should be noted that the contract resulting from this RFP will be awarded to 
the respondent whose proposal is determined to be in the “best interest” of the Town. Therefore, the 
proposal offering the lowest cost may not necessarily be the proposal that is selected for award.  

RIGHT OF REFUSAL. The Town reserves the right to: a) Reject any or all proposals, or to make no award. 

b) Select certain applications from the proposals. c) Require modifications to initial proposals. d) to

make partial or multiple awards. e) award based on initial proposals received, without discussion of such

proposals. f) invite selected vendors to make oral presentations to the evaluations team. Failure of a

vendor to comply with the request for meeting may be grounds for bid rejections. g) excuse technical

defects in a proposal when, in its sole discretion, such as excuse is beneficial to the Town.



PROPOSAL FORM: 

Due ________________ 

To: Town of Lyman 

Select Board  

11 South Waterboro Rd 

Lyman, ME 04002 

The undersigned individual/firm/business guarantees this price for sixty days (60) from the 

proposal due date. The undersigned submits this proposal without collusion with any other 

person, individual, or firm or agency. The undersigned ensures the authority to act on behalf of 

the corporation, partnership or individual they represent; and has read and agreed to all of the 

terms, requests, or conditions written herein by the Town of Lyman.   

By signing this form, the firm listed below hereby affirms that its bid meets the minimum 

specifications and standards as listed above. 

Signature __________________________________ Company ________________________________________ 

Name (print) _______________________________ Telephone # _____________________________________ 

Title ________________________________________ Fax # _____________________________________________ 

Address __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Email Address ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Web Site _________________________________________________________________________________________ 



TRANSFER STATION

Replace 3 retaining walls by the wood and metal cans and add a new wall to 
replace the old rock wall by the office. All new walls will be 12” thick 
retaining wall pours.   $32,275.00

Excavation for all for new walls and backfilled and compacted ready for new 
paving. $13,000.00

Pave the disturbed areas by the new walls and place 2” of base pavement 
and 2” of surface and pave the gravel hill and flat area by the lower trash 
compactors. $25,200.00

Replace the steel support pcs and replace all the anchor bolts on the 
compactors and add new Diamond plates in front of the 2 trash 
compactors. $12,000.00

Lighting improvements on the upper area in various locations and upgrade 
the salt shed lighting.  Add Cat 6 cable to the office $24,450.00

Remove and replace 5 canopies, 2 over the wood bin and 1 over the metal 
bin and 2 over the recycling compactors.        $30,000.00

Add up to 5 new cameras around the transfer station. $4,500.00

Pour a new slab below the end of the yard area where the appliances are 
stored. $3,000.00

Add new protective railings on all the new retaining walls and cast in place 
pockets. $5,500.00

Sand blast and repaint the backhoe $9,500.00

Replace 2 retaining walls at the Salt shed $9,000.00

Total        $168,425.00

BUNGANUT BEACH

Shed for equipment. $3,000.00

Network devices.
  Computer Rack (enclosed with fan capabilities) $225.00

   Ubiquiti Router $450.00
24-port POE Switch $650.00

  UPS $250.00

A.R.P.A. Committee Recommended  Projects
(cost are estimates)

Page 1 of 3

ITEM #5: ARPA Funding - discuss RFPs



   Camera's (4) $1,800.00
   Additional Cabling $5,000.00

  10G Drive (instant video storage) $400.00

Power to water pump $9,500.00

Pump constant pressure system $27,450.00

Shed for pump tank or decorative rock
Shed $3,000.00
Rock $450.00

Gravel for top parking lot and secondary lot $5,000.00

Replace approximately 100 ft of walking bridge $8,500.00

Concrete Pads for picnic tables.  Add 4 new tables and 1 handicap $7,500.00

Total        $73,175.00

BUNGANUT BALLFIELD

Remove stumps & rocks right hand side of gate, Grade & add fill $25,000.00

Gravel new parking area $10,000.00

Finish fencing for child safety approx 150 and the parking area approx 300 ft $7,500.00

Move rocks in parking area back 20ft and grass $1,000.00

Six load of loam to finish grass areas on banking and in front of rock wall $2,400.00

Add a Well, and drinking water for the concession stand $20,000.00

Removal of dangerous trees If money is available

Improvements to Bunganut building If money is available

Playground equipment If money is available

Lean - to for vending machines If money is available

Total $65,900.00

KENNEBUNK POND

Parking lot redesign: $19,890.00 (5,410 coming from reserve account)

Beach side: Plantings, ADA access $39,490.00 see sketch

Page 2 of 3



Gate system with entry & exit gates, including card reader (does not include 
excavation, internet or router costs - if town cameras are installed, can plug into 
that network) $17,304.00 see sketch

Excavate & cover trench for gate wiring $1,000.00

Cameras & installation w/feed to Town Hall $2,000.00 Pending information from the town

Design & Technical Development, Construction Documentation, & Construction 
Administration - SOLE SOURCE $6,795.00

Refund from state for ADA access ($10,000.00)

Total        $76,479.00

GRAND TOTAL $383,979.00

Page 3 of 3



From: Code Enforcement Officer
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: Board Meeting March 6
Date: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 3:18:56 PM
Attachments: tree removal permit.docx

image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Hi Lindsay, I’d like to discuss implementing a Shoreland Tree Removal Permit with the Select Board at their next
meeting, please.   I’d like to use the attached permit.  It would change the fee schedule so if they approve, I will
bring an updated fee sheet for them to sign.  I that ok?

 

Brenda Charland
Code Enforcement Officer

 

11 So. Waterboro Road, Lyman, ME 04002

207-247-0647 
207-468-3220

ceo@lyman-me.gov 

   lyman-me.gov

Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right to Know”) law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which
may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. If you have received this message in
error, please notify us immediately by return e-mail. Thank you for your cooperation.

ITEM #6: (f.) CEO - Tree Cutting Permit

mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:ceo@lyman-me.gov
https://lyman-me.gov/

MAP # _______ LOT # ______ DATE ___________ PERMIT#________ Number of trees ______@ $15/ ea. = $____________ 

[image: A picture containing text

Description automatically generated]-----------------------------------------------------------above to be filled in by office ------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWN OF LYMAN 

TREE REMOVAL IN THE SHORELAND 

11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman Maine  04002

Telephone: (207) 247-0647         Email:  ceo@lyman-me.gov

Owner Information	Point of Contact if Other than the Property Owner

Name:  _____________________________________	Name:  _______________________________________

Mailing Address:  _____________________________	Address:  _____________________________________

Physical Address:  ____________________________	Phone #: _____________________________________

Phone #: ____________________________________	Email:  _______________________________________

Email: ______________________________________



TREE REMOVAL PLAN – On a separate page, please include all the following:



· Site plan divided into 25’ x 25’ grids starting from one of the property lines. Show lot dimensions, structures, septic system, driveway, etc.

· Determine which grid(s) contain trees that will be removed and number each grid.

· Identify all trees in each 25’ x 25’ grid that will be removed, label all trees with the allotted point values (a table showing point values is included in the instructions attached).

· Show how many trees remain in each grid from which trees are removed indicating point value of each tree. 

· Provide photos of all trees to be removed and remaining trees in the immediate area. (Emailed pictures will be printed at $1 per page).

· Signed Letter of Authorization, if the Applicant is not the property owner on record, Check for $15 fee per tree to Town of Lyman.



		Grid #

		Original Point Value

		*Point Value of Trees to be Removed

		*Remaining Points

		

		Grid #

		Number of Trees to be Removed

		*Point Value of Trees to be Removed

		*Remaining Points



		1

		



		

		

		

		4

		

		

		



		2

		



		

		

		

		5

		

		

		



		3

		



		

		

		

		6

		

		

		





*See Instructions for Point Rating attached

I hereby certify that all the information on this application is correct:



__________________________________________________        ________________

Applicant                                                                       Date



------------------------------------------------------------- below to be filled in by office ----------------------------------------------------------------- 

(  ) Granted     (  ) Denied – Reason:_________________________________________________________________

CEO Signature _____________________________                                     Date _______________

Replanting Requirements _____________________ Replanting Inspection Date _______________ 




CLEARING OR REMOVAL OF VEGETATION FOR ACTIVITIES OTHER THAN TIMBER HARVESTING IN THE TOWN OF LYMAN

Within a Resource Protection District adjacent to a great pond, there shall be no cutting of vegetation within the strip of land extending seventy-five feet (75’) horizontal distance, inland from the normal high-water line, except to remove safety hazards. Elsewhere, in any Resource Protection District the cutting or removal of vegetation shall be limited to that which is necessary for uses expressly authorized in that District.

Except in areas as described above and except to allow for the development of permitted uses, within a strip of land extending one hundred feet (100’), horizontal distance, inland from the normal high-water line of a great pond or river, and seventy-five feet (75’), horizontal distance, from any other water body, tributary stream, or the upland edge of a wetland, a buffer strip of vegetation shall be preserved as follows:

a. There shall be no cleared opening greater than two hundred fifty square feet (250 sq. ft.) in the forest canopy (or other existing woody vegetation if a forested canopy is not present), as measured from the outer limits of the tree or shrub crown. However, a footpath not to exceed six (6) feet in width as measured between tree trunks and/or shrub stems is allowed, provided that a cleared line of sight to the water through the buffer strip is not created.



b. Selective cutting of trees within the buffer strip is allowed, provided that the applicant submits to the CEO a plan for selective cutting in accordance with this section of the Ordinance, and that a well-distributed stand of trees and other vegetation is maintained. For the purposes of section, a "well-distributed stand of trees and other vegetation" adjacent to a great pond or a river or a stream flowing to a great pond, shall be defined as maintaining a rating score of twelve (12) or more in each twenty-five-foot (25’) by twenty-five foot (25’) square, six hundred twenty-five square feet (625 sq. ft.) area as determined by the following rating system:

Tree at 4 1/2 feet above

Ground Level (inches)                       Points



2-4 inches ..............................................1



4-12 inches ............................................2



12+ inches .............................................4



Adjacent to other water bodies, tributary streams, and wetlands, a "well-distributed stand of trees and other vegetation" is defined as maintaining a minimum rating score of eight (8) per twenty-five (25) foot square area. 



NOTE: For the purposes of section b, “other natural vegetation” is defined as retaining existing vegetation under three feet (3’) in height and other ground cover and retaining at least three (3) saplings less than two inches (2”) in diameter at four and one-half feet (4 1/2”) above ground level for each twenty five foot (25’ by 25’) rectangular area. If three (3) saplings do not exist, no woody stems less than two inches (2”) in diameter can be removed until three (3) saplings have been recruited into the plot.



Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, no more than forty percent (40%) of the total volume of trees four inches (4”) or more in diameter, measured at four and one-half feet (4-1/2’) above ground level, may be removed in any ten (10) year period.



c. To protect water quality and wildlife habitat, existing vegetation under three feet (3’) in height and other ground cover, including leaf litter and the forest duff layer, shall not be cut, covered, or removed, except to provide for a footpath or other permitted uses as described in Paragraphs 2 and 2a above.



d. Pruning of tree branches on the bottom one-third (1/3) of the tree is allowed.



e. To maintain a buffer strip of vegetation when the removal of storm damaged, diseased, unsafe, or dead trees results in the creation of cleared openings, these openings shall be replanted with native trees species unless existing new tree growth is present. 



NOTE:  This does not apply to those portions of public recreational facilities adjacent to public swimming areas as long as cleared areas are limited to the minimum area necessary.



At distances greater than one hundred (100) feet, horizontal distance, from a great pond or river, and seventy-five feet (75’), horizontal distance, from the normal high water line of any other water body, tributary stream, or the upland edge of a wetland, there shall be allowed on any lot, in any ten (10) year period, selective cutting of not more than forty percent (40%) of the volume of trees four inches (4”) or more in diameter, measured four and one-half feet (4-1/2”) above the ground level. Tree removal in conjunction with the development of permitted uses shall be included in the forty percent (40%) calculation. For the purposes of these standards, volume may be considered to be equivalent to basal area.



In no event shall cleared openings for any purpose, including, but not limited to, principal and accessory structures, driveways, lawns, and sewage disposal areas, exceed in the aggregate, twenty-five percent (25%) of the lot area within the Shoreland District or ten thousand square feet (10,000 sq. ft.), whichever is greater, including land previously cleared.



Legally existing non-conforming cleared openings may be maintained, but shall not be enlarged, except as allowed by this Ordinance.

Fields and other cleared openings which have reverted to primarily shrubs, trees, or other woody vegetation shall be regulated under the provisions of this section.



Fields and other cleared openings which have reverted to primarily shrubs, trees, or other woody vegetation shall be regulated under the provisions of this section.

image1.png









MAP # _______ LOT # ______ DATE ___________ PERMIT#________ Number of trees ______@ $15/ ea. = $____________ 

-----------------------------------------------------------above to be filled in by office ------------------------------------------------------------------- 

TOWN OF LYMAN  

TREE REMOVAL IN THE SHORELAND 

11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman Maine  04002 

Telephone: (207) 247-0647         Email:  ceo@lyman-me.gov 

Owner Information Point of Contact if Other than the Property Owner 

Name:  _____________________________________ Name:  _______________________________________ 

Mailing Address:  _____________________________ Address:  _____________________________________ 

Physical Address:  ____________________________ Phone #: _____________________________________ 

Phone #: ____________________________________ Email:  _______________________________________ 

Email: ______________________________________ 

TREE REMOVAL PLAN – On a separate page, please include all the following: 

• Site plan divided into 25’ x 25’ grids starting from

one of the property lines. Show lot dimensions,

structures, septic system, driveway, etc.

• Determine which grid(s) contain trees that will be

removed and number each grid.

• Identify all trees in each 25’ x 25’ grid that will be

removed, label all trees with the allotted point values

(a table showing point values is included in the

instructions attached).

• Show how many trees remain in each grid from

which trees are removed indicating point value of

each tree.

• Provide photos of all trees to be removed and

remaining trees in the immediate area. (Emailed

pictures will be printed at $1 per page).

• Signed Letter of Authorization, if the Applicant is not

the property owner on record, Check for $15 fee per

tree to Town of Lyman.

Grid # Original Point 
Value 

*Point Value of
Trees to be
Removed 

*Remaining
Points

Grid # Number of Trees 
to be Removed 

*Point Value of
Trees to be
Removed 

*Remaining
Points

1 4 

2 5 

3 6 

*See Instructions for Point Rating attached

I hereby certify that all the information on this application is correct: 

__________________________________________________  ________________ 

Applicant    Date 

------------------------------------------------------------- below to be filled in by office ----------------------------------------------------------------- 

(  ) Granted  (  ) Denied – Reason:_________________________________________________________________ 

CEO Signature _____________________________   Date _______________ 

Replanting Requirements _____________________ Replanting Inspection Date _______________ 



CLEARING OR REMOVAL OF VEGETATION FOR ACTIVITIES OTHER THAN TIMBER 

HARVESTING IN THE TOWN OF LYMAN 

Within a Resource Protection District adjacent to a great pond, there shall be no cutting of vegetation within the strip of 

land extending seventy-five feet (75’) horizontal distance, inland from the normal high-water line, except to remove 

safety hazards. Elsewhere, in any Resource Protection District the cutting or removal of vegetation shall be limited to 

that which is necessary for uses expressly authorized in that District. 

Except in areas as described above and except to allow for the development of permitted uses, within a strip of land 

extending one hundred feet (100’), horizontal distance, inland from the normal high-water line of a great pond or river, 

and seventy-five feet (75’), horizontal distance, from any other water body, tributary stream, or the upland edge of a 

wetland, a buffer strip of vegetation shall be preserved as follows: 

a. There shall be no cleared opening greater than two hundred fifty square feet (250 sq. ft.) in the forest canopy (or

other existing woody vegetation if a forested canopy is not present), as measured from the outer limits of the tree

or shrub crown. However, a footpath not to exceed six (6) feet in width as measured between tree trunks and/or

shrub stems is allowed, provided that a cleared line of sight to the water through the buffer strip is not created.

b. Selective cutting of trees within the buffer strip is allowed, provided that the applicant submits to the CEO a plan

for selective cutting in accordance with this section of the Ordinance, and that a well-distributed stand of trees and

other vegetation is maintained. For the purposes of section, a "well-distributed stand of trees and other

vegetation" adjacent to a great pond or a river or a stream flowing to a great pond, shall be defined as maintaining

a rating score of twelve (12) or more in each twenty-five-foot (25’) by twenty-five foot (25’) square, six hundred

twenty-five square feet (625 sq. ft.) area as determined by the following rating system:

Tree at 4 1/2 feet above 

Ground Level (inches)    Points 

2-4 inches ..............................................1 

4-12 inches ............................................2 

12+ inches .............................................4 

Adjacent to other water bodies, tributary streams, and wetlands, a "well-distributed stand of trees and other 

vegetation" is defined as maintaining a minimum rating score of eight (8) per twenty-five (25) foot square area. 

NOTE: For the purposes of section b, “other natural vegetation” is defined as retaining existing vegetation under three 

feet (3’) in height and other ground cover and retaining at least three (3) saplings less than two inches (2”) in diameter 

at four and one-half feet (4 1/2”) above ground level for each twenty five foot (25’ by 25’) rectangular area. If three (3) 

saplings do not exist, no woody stems less than two inches (2”) in diameter can be removed until three (3) saplings 

have been recruited into the plot. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, no more than forty percent (40%) of the total volume of trees four 

inches (4”) or more in diameter, measured at four and one-half feet (4-1/2’) above ground level, may be removed in 

any ten (10) year period. 

c. To protect water quality and wildlife habitat, existing vegetation under three feet (3’) in height and other ground

cover, including leaf litter and the forest duff layer, shall not be cut, covered, or removed, except to provide for a

footpath or other permitted uses as described in Paragraphs 2 and 2a above.

d. Pruning of tree branches on the bottom one-third (1/3) of the tree is allowed.



e. To maintain a buffer strip of vegetation when the removal of storm damaged, diseased, unsafe, or dead trees

results in the creation of cleared openings, these openings shall be replanted with native trees species unless

existing new tree growth is present.

NOTE:  This does not apply to those portions of public recreational facilities adjacent to public swimming areas as

long as cleared areas are limited to the minimum area necessary.

At distances greater than one hundred (100) feet, horizontal distance, from a great pond or river, and seventy-five feet 

(75’), horizontal distance, from the normal high water line of any other water body, tributary stream, or the upland edge 

of a wetland, there shall be allowed on any lot, in any ten (10) year period, selective cutting of not more than forty 

percent (40%) of the volume of trees four inches (4”) or more in diameter, measured four and one-half feet (4-1/2”) 

above the ground level. Tree removal in conjunction with the development of permitted uses shall be included in the 

forty percent (40%) calculation. For the purposes of these standards, volume may be considered to be equivalent to 

basal area. 

In no event shall cleared openings for any purpose, including, but not limited to, principal and accessory structures, 

driveways, lawns, and sewage disposal areas, exceed in the aggregate, twenty-five percent (25%) of the lot area 

within the Shoreland District or ten thousand square feet (10,000 sq. ft.), whichever is greater, including land 

previously cleared. 

Legally existing non-conforming cleared openings may be maintained, but shall not be enlarged, except as allowed by 

this Ordinance. 

Fields and other cleared openings which have reverted to primarily shrubs, trees, or other woody vegetation shall be 

regulated under the provisions of this section. 

Fields and other cleared openings which have reverted to primarily shrubs, trees, or other woody vegetation shall be 

regulated under the provisions of this section. 



ITEM #6: (g.) Treasurer Expense Report 3-2-23





















From: Andy Orazio
To: Selectmen Board Clerk; Matt Ouellette
Subject: Contract Revisions
Date: Monday, February 27, 2023 4:50:26 PM
Attachments: Bunganut Park Contract 2022-2024 Ammended 2-15-2023.docx

Hello Lindsay,

As discussed last week the YMCA insurance company reviewed our contract with the Town of Lyman
to Manage Bunganut Park. Based on that review they have requested some minor edits the assist in
protecting each party.  The edits requested are directly related to minimize the liability .  These
changes will not impact the current financial agreements or change any of the agreed upon services
we provide within the contract.  The basis of the changes is being determined because of the
unguarded public waterfront usage and playground usage.   As a Town operation the Town of Lyman
falls under the Municipal Immunity coverage that protects you from liability.  As an organization the
Y is not allowed this coverage.  So based on our Management Agreement our insurance company
has asked for some additional language and edits that clarify that we are acting under the directions
of the Town to manage the rules, regulations and policies set by the Town of Lyman.  I believe that
once you review the amendments you will understand the minor adjustments.  We would be happy
to discuss this in more detail and hope to approve the amendments in the next month.  I will be out

of town until March 14th so please feel free to contact Matt Ouellette while I am away.Please find
attached the requested ammendments for your review.  Have a great day.  We look forward to
another great summer!

Andrew Orazio, CEO
P 207-324-4942
F 207-636-8046
Sanfordymca.org

#StayWithUs

The Y: We're for youth development, healthy living and social responsibility

ITEM #7: (a.) YMCA Contract revisions 

mailto:aorazio@sanfordymca.org
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:mouellette@sanfordymca.org





MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT



This AGREEMENT is entered into on May 5, 2022, by and between the INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and located in the County of York, State of Maine and having a mailing address of 11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman, Maine 04002 (hereinafter "the Town"), and the SANFORD/SPRINGVALE Y.M.C.A., a Maine non-profit corporation  with offices at 1 Emile Levasseur Drive, Sanford, County of York and State of Maine (hereinafter "Y.M.C.A.").



WHEREAS, the Y.M.C.A. wishes to manage certain real property owned by the Town located on Brock Road and known as Bunganut Park; and

WHEREAS, the Town, acting through its municipal officers as authorized by Town Meeting, is willing to agree to the management of said premises under the terms and conditions contained herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual conditions and covenants contained herein, the parties agree to the following terms:

1.      Basic Contract for services; Description of Property; Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Town contracts with the Y.M.C.A., and the Y.M.C.A. hereby agrees, to manage the land and buildings; known as Bunganut Park, all located at Brock Road and further described as Tax Assessor's  Map 2, Lot 10 ("the Premises"), situated in Lyman.

2.        Use of the Premises.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to the operation of and access to Bunganut Park provided in the Town Department of Parks and Recreation rules, and for other Y.M.C.A. recreation-related purposes under the terms of this Agreement.  The Y.M.C.A. will hire the necessary personnel, preference to Lyman Residents, to operate Bunganut Park for the term of the Agreement.  All personnel hired by the Y.M.C.A. are employees of the Y.M.C.A. and shall in no way be considered employees of the Town. 

Starting May 1st of each year, the Y.M.C.A. will begin promoting and securing reservations for Bunganut Park for individual and group usage, organizing administrative tasks and securing staff for the opening day.  Beginning on Memorial Day weekend every year, the Y.M.C.A. will operate Bunganut Park every weekend until school is out in June, to also include the Memorial Day holiday.  After school is out, the Y.M.C.A. will operate Bunganut Park seven days per week until Labor Day of each year.  The Y.M.C.A. shall operate Bunganut Park for the weekend after Labor Day, with the final day of operations being the Sunday following Labor Day.  From the Sunday following Labor Day through the end of October, the Y.M.C.A. shall finish all administrative responsibilities, facility cleaning and facility closing by October 30th of each year.  The Y.M.C.A. will hire the necessary personnel including one (1) adult employed to supervise the operation of the Park for the term of this Agreement.   Monday through Friday, the supervisor and a gatekeeper  at  the  Park's  entrance  shall  be on the  premises  for  ten (10)  hours  a day; Saturday and Sunday, the supervisor and a gatekeeper shall be on the premises for ten (10) hours a day. The Park shall close at dusk, an exact time to be agreed upon by the parties.  

The Town's Department of Parks and Recreation and civic groups may use the garage structure on the premises for meetings during the summer operating season, after obtaining permission from the Y.M.C.A., which permission shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Department of Parks and Recreation will review the current Park rules and fee structure prior to the commencement of the term of the Agreement, and the Town shall have sole authority to change or modify the same. Any changes will require the approval of the Town's Board of Selectmen. The Y.M.C.A. will turn over all Park admission fees to the Town on a monthly basis. 

The Y.M.C.A. is responsible for scheduling and making financial arrangements for private functions in the Park and for providing any such reservations to the Clerk of the Board of Selectmen.  The Y.M.C.A. will be responsible for for staffing or monitoring such private functions and for cleaning up.

The Y.M.C.A. summer day camp will be located in the Park's garage structure, and children who are residents of Lyman will have priority in enrollment in the camp.  The Town is financially responsible for, and has the exclusive discretion to contract for, repairs to the garage necessary under State law to accommodate a Children's Day Camp; repairs may be required by administrative rules of the Maine Department of Human Services, Me Dep't of Hum. Serv., 10-144 CMR 208, promulgated pursuant to statutory authority provided by 22 M.R.S.A. §§ 2491- 2502.  The Y.M.C.A. programs, other than the summer day camp, will be offered to Lyman residents at a 50 percent discount from the full rates charged to non-residents.  The Y.M.C.A. may use Bunganut Field for Y.M.C.A. summer programs at no additional cost, after confirming with the Department of Parks and Recreation that no scheduling conflicts exist, Town approval for the same shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Department of Parks and Recreation will act as an intermediary between the Board of Selectmen and the Y.M.C.A. The Board of Selectmen has final authority in all matters and management decisions related to the management of Bunganut Park, except as otherwise expressly provided for herein. 



	3.   Payment:   The Town will pay the Y.M.C.A. with $41,000 in 2022, 2023 and in 2024 for the Park 

Management with the understanding that due to the volatility in the labor force and job market we reserve the 

right to request additional costs in 2023 and 2024 due to labor expenses. This request will occur in writing 

and will occur in the early part of 2023 and 2024 respectively.

Park Management to be paid monthly, in arrears, for the term of the Agreement.  The Town will provide the amount of $12,300.00 for the months of June, July, August and September, and the Town will provide the amount of $4,100.00 for the month of October.

4.	Duration: The term of this Agreement shall be for the period beginning May 1, 2022  and ending October 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated for cause.



[bookmark: _GoBack]5.  Repairs and Maintenance. The Town agrees to perform at its expense all repairs and maintenance to the Premises, buildings and equipment including, but not limited to, repairs to recreational playground equipment, to glass, light fixtures, carpeting, painting and such a repairs to the existing garage structure as required by law.

6.   Operating Expenses.   The Town is responsible for supplies, electricity, telephone service, internet service, rubbish removal and portable toilets. The Y.M.C.A. is responsible for costs associated with signage, vehicle passes, the disbursements of salaries and for any children's supplies related to the Park's children's programs.

7.   Access to Premises.  The Town, its officials, agents and employees may enter the Premises at any time, provided, however, that the Town shall not unreasonably interfere with the Y.M.C.A. operations and that the Town shall respect all privacy requirements imposed by law.

8.   Default.   If, during the term of this Agreement, or any extension of the term, the Y.M.C.A. or the Town shall default in the performance of any of the covenants or conditions required by this Agreement, and if default is not corrected within fourteen (14) days after delivery of written notice specifying the default and sent by registered mail, the non-defaulting party shall have the right at its election to terminate this Agreement or, in the case that the Town is  the  non-defaulting  party,  to  re-enter  the  Premises  and  remove  all  persons  and/or improvements from the Premises, or to take any other action for the enforcement of any right or remedy available at law.

9.   Waiver.   The Y.M.C.A. covenants and agrees that, except as herein otherwise provided, the rights and remedies of the Town under this Agreement shall be cumulative and that the exercise of any one of them shall not be exclusive of any other right or remedy provided by this Agreement or otherwise allowed by law or in equity and that waiver by the Town of any breach of any covenant or covenants or conditions of this Agreement shall be limited to the particular instance and shall not operate or be deemed to waive any other or further breach of any covenant or covenants or conditions or failure or omission on the part of the Y.M.C.A. to perform any other different covenant or condition on the same or any other occasion and that, except as aforesaid, the receipt of any monies or other amounts of any portion thereof shall not operate as a waiver of the Town's right to enforce the payment of subsequent installments of monies or any of the other rights of the Town under this Agreement, by any remedies which may be available to the Town.

	10. Non-Appropriation. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, if the Municipality does not receive sufficient funds to fund this Agreement and other obligations of the Municipality, if funds are de-appropriated, or if the Municipality does not receive legal authority to expend funds from the Voters then the Municipality is not obligated to make payment under this Agreement.



	11. Notices.  All notices, demands, or other writings in this Agreement provided to be given or made or sent, or which may be given or made or sent, by either party to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given or made or sent when made in writing and mailed or delivered by hand as follows:





The Town:	Select Board

Lyman Town Offices

11 South Waterboro Road

Lyman, ME 04002







The Y.M.C.A.:	Sanford-Springvale Y.M.C.A.

Executive Director

P.O. Box249

1 Emile Lavasseur Drive

Sanford, ME 04073



The address to which any notice, demand, or other writing may be given or made or sent to any party as above provided may be changed by written notice by the addressee to the other party.

11. Sublease or Assignment.   As this Agreement is solely a management agreement, the



Premises shall not be sublet in whole or in part.   This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred, without the prior, express, and written consent of the Town.  Any attempted unauthorized assignment, sublease, or license to occupy shall be void, and shall terminate this Agreement at the Town's option.

12. Indemnification. Each party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all expenses, claims, lawsuits, judgments and costs, including reasonable attorney's fees, that they may become liable to pay or defend as the result of the negligent acts, omissions or willful misconduct of the other party, or its officers, agents or employees, arising out of or in connection with the other party's use of the Premises pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, nothing herein shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the immunity of the Town or any of its employees under the Maine Torts Claims Act.





13. Insurance. The Y.M.C.A and the Town of Lyman. shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement (including any extensions) comprehensive general liability insurance with a company licensed to do business in the State of Maine in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.  The Y.M.C.A and the Town of Lyman. shall include the Toweach othern as an additional named insured on the Y.M.C.A.'s liability insurance in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; provided, further, that the Y.M.C.A and the Town of Lyman. shall provide each other a Certificate of Insurance showing the same at the time of commencement of this Agreement.  The Certificate of Insurance shall provide for a 30-day advance notice of cancellation to the Town. 

	Regardless, the Town acknowledges that it promulgates the rules of usage of  the Park, and the Y.M.C.A. shall manage the Park in accordance with such rules, and as such it is agreed by the Town and the Y.M.C.A. that in regard to the public usage of the Park, the Y.M.C.A. shall not be responsible or liable for any claims stemming from the public usage of the Park, including, but not limited to, the usage of the public waterfront and the  playground and sports activities areas, the enforcement for repeated inappropriate uses or behaviors by the public patrons, and public indulgence of behavior altering substances. As to the behaviors mentioned, the YMCA shall first seek to address them but if any matter escalates, theYMCA shall involve law enforcement officials  as it has in the past.



14. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement signed by the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, as of the date first above written, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals by their authorized representatives.	





				INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN









														 

William Single Selectmen’s Chair				David Dulong; Vice Chair 







						 								

Thomas Guillemette						John E. Tibbetts;





														

Ralph “Rusty” Blackington					Witness:														Nancy Brandt; Selectmen’s Clerk							







SANFORD/SPRINGVALE Y.M.C.A.











															

							              By: Andrew Orazio

							             Its:   Chief Executive Officer







4







1 

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT is entered into on May 5, 2022, by and between the INHABITANTS OF THE 

TOWN OF LYMAN, a municipal corporation existing under the laws of the State of Maine and located in 

the County of York, State of Maine and having a mailing address of 11 South Waterboro Road, Lyman, 

Maine 04002 (hereinafter "the Town"), and the SANFORD/SPRINGVALE Y.M.C.A., a Maine non-profit 

corporation  with offices at 1 Emile Levasseur Drive, Sanford, County of York and State of Maine 

(hereinafter "Y.M.C.A."). 

WHEREAS, the Y.M.C.A. wishes to manage certain real property owned by the Town located on 

Brock Road and known as Bunganut Park; and 

WHEREAS, the Town, acting through its municipal officers as authorized by Town Meeting, is 

willing to agree to the management of said premises under the terms and conditions contained herein; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual conditions and covenants contained herein, the 

parties agree to the following terms: 

1. Basic Contract for services; Description of Property; Pursuant to the terms of this Agreement,

the Town contracts with the Y.M.C.A., and the Y.M.C.A. hereby agrees, to manage the land and buildings; 

known as Bunganut Park, all located at Brock Road and further described as Tax Assessor's  Map 2, Lot 10 

("the Premises"), situated in Lyman. 

2. Use of the Premises.  Use of the Premises shall be limited to the operation of and access to

Bunganut Park provided in the Town Department of Parks and Recreation rules, and for other Y.M.C.A. 

recreation-related purposes under the terms of this Agreement.  The Y.M.C.A. will hire the necessary personnel, 

preference to Lyman Residents, to operate Bunganut Park for the term of the Agreement.  All personnel hired 

by the Y.M.C.A. are employees of the Y.M.C.A. and shall in no way be considered employees of the Town.  

Starting May 1st of each year, the Y.M.C.A. will begin promoting and securing reservations for Bunganut 

Park for individual and group usage, organizing administrative tasks and securing staff for the opening day.  

Beginning on Memorial Day weekend every year, the Y.M.C.A. will operate Bunganut Park every weekend 

until school is out in June, to also include the Memorial Day holiday.  After school is out, the Y.M.C.A. will 

operate Bunganut Park seven days per week until Labor Day of each year.  The Y.M.C.A. shall operate Bunganut 

Park for the weekend after Labor Day, with the final day of operations being the Sunday following Labor Day.  

From the Sunday following Labor Day through the end of October, the Y.M.C.A. shall finish all administrative 



2  

responsibilities, facility cleaning and facility closing by October 30th of each year.  The Y.M.C.A. will hire the 

necessary personnel including one (1) adult employed to supervise the operation of the Park for the term of 

this Agreement.   Monday through Friday, the supervisor and a gatekeeper  at  the  Park's  entrance  shall  

be on the  premises  for  ten (10)  hours  a day; Saturday and Sunday, the supervisor and a gatekeeper shall be 

on the premises for ten (10) hours a day. The Park shall close at dusk, an exact time to be agreed upon by the 

parties.   

The Town's Department of Parks and Recreation and civic groups may use the garage structure 

on the premises for meetings during the summer operating season, after obtaining permission from the 

Y.M.C.A., which permission shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Department of 

Parks and Recreation will review the current Park rules and fee structure prior to the commencement of 

the term of the Agreement, and the Town shall have sole authority to change or modify the same. Any changes 

will require the approval of the Town's Board of Selectmen. The Y.M.C.A. will turn over all Park admission 

fees to the Town on a monthly basis.  

The Y.M.C.A. is responsible for scheduling and making financial arrangements for private functions in 

the Park and for providing any such reservations to the Clerk of the Board of Selectmen.  The Y.M.C.A. 

will be responsible for for staffing or monitoring such private functions and for cleaning up. 

The Y.M.C.A. summer day camp will be located in the Park's garage structure, and children who 

are residents of Lyman will have priority in enrollment in the camp.  The Town is financially responsible for, 

and has the exclusive discretion to contract for, repairs to the garage necessary under State law to accommodate 

a Children's Day Camp; repairs may be required by administrative rules of the Maine Department of Human 

Services, Me Dep't of Hum. Serv., 10-144 CMR 208, promulgated pursuant to statutory authority provided 

by 22 M.R.S.A. §§ 2491- 2502.  The Y.M.C.A. programs, other than the summer day camp, will be offered 

to Lyman residents at a 50 percent discount from the full rates charged to non-residents.  The Y.M.C.A. may 

use Bunganut Field for Y.M.C.A. summer programs at no additional cost, after confirming with the Department 

of Parks and Recreation that no scheduling conflicts exist, Town approval for the same shall not be 

unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. The Department of Parks and Recreation will act as an 

intermediary between the Board of Selectmen and the Y.M.C.A. The Board of Selectmen has final authority 

in all matters and management decisions related to the management of Bunganut Park, except as otherwise 

expressly provided for herein.  

 



3 

3. Payment:   The Town will pay the Y.M.C.A. with $41,000 in 2022, 2023 and in 2024 for the Park

Management with the understanding that due to the volatility in the labor force and job market we reserve the 

right to request additional costs in 2023 and 2024 due to labor expenses. This request will occur in writing  

and will occur in the early part of 2023 and 2024 respectively. 

Park Management to be paid monthly, in arrears, for the term of the Agreement.  The Town will 

provide the amount of $12,300.00 for the months of June, July, August and September, and the Town 

will provide the amount of $4,100.00 for the month of October. 

4. Duration: The term of this Agreement shall be for the period beginning May 1, 2022  and ending

October 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated for cause. 

5. Repairs and Maintenance. The Town agrees to perform at its expense all repairs and

maintenance to the Premises, buildings and equipment including, but not limited to, repairs to 

recreational playground equipment, to glass, light fixtures, carpeting, painting and such a repairs to 

the existing garage structure as required by law. 

6. Operating Expenses.   The Town is responsible for supplies, electricity, telephone

service, internet service, rubbish removal and portable toilets. The Y.M.C.A. is responsible for costs 

associated with signage, vehicle passes, the disbursements of salaries and for any children's supplies 

related to the Park's children's programs. 

7. Access to Premises.  The Town, its officials, agents and employees may enter the

Premises at any time, provided, however, that the Town shall not unreasonably interfere with the 

Y.M.C.A. operations and that the Town shall respect all privacy requirements imposed by law.

8. Default.   If, during the term of this Agreement, or any extension of the term, the

Y.M.C.A. or the Town shall default in the performance of any of the covenants or conditions

required by this Agreement, and if default is not corrected within fourteen (14) days after delivery of 

written notice specifying the default and sent by registered mail, the non-defaulting party shall have 

the right at its election to terminate this Agreement or, in the case that the Town is  the  non-defaulting 

party,  to  re-enter  the  Premises  and  remove  all  persons  and/or improvements from the 

Premises, or to take any other action for the enforcement of any right or remedy available at law. 

9. Waiver.   The Y.M.C.A. covenants and agrees that, except as herein otherwise provided,

the rights and remedies of the Town under this Agreement shall be cumulative and that the exercise 

of any one of them shall not be exclusive of any other right or remedy provided by this Agreement or 



4 

otherwise allowed by law or in equity and that waiver by the Town of any breach of any covenant or 

covenants or conditions of this Agreement shall be limited to the particular instance and shall not 

operate or be deemed to waive any other or further breach of any covenant or covenants or conditions 

or failure or omission on the part of the Y.M.C.A. to perform any other different covenant or 

condition on the same or any other occasion and that, except as aforesaid, the receipt of any monies 

or other amounts of any portion thereof shall not operate as a waiver of the Town's right to enforce 

the payment of subsequent installments of monies or any of the other rights of the Town under this 

Agreement, by any remedies which may be available to the Town. 

10. Non-Appropriation. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, if the Municipality does

not receive sufficient funds to fund this Agreement and other obligations of the Municipality, if funds are de-

appropriated, or if the Municipality does not receive legal authority to expend funds from the Voters then the 

Municipality is not obligated to make payment under this Agreement. 

11. Notices.  All notices, demands, or other writings in this Agreement provided to be given or made

or sent, or which may be given or made or sent, by either party to the other, shall be deemed to have been 

fully given or made or sent when made in writing and mailed or delivered by hand as follows: 

The Town: Select Board 

Lyman Town Offices 

11 South Waterboro Road 

Lyman, ME 04002 

The Y.M.C.A.: Sanford-Springvale Y.M.C.A. 

Executive Director 

P.O. Box249 

1 Emile Lavasseur Drive 

Sanford, ME 04073 

The address to which any notice, demand, or other writing may be given or made or sent to any party as above 

provided may be changed by written notice by the addressee to the other party. 

11. Sublease or Assignment.   As this Agreement is solely a management agreement, the

Premises shall not be sublet in whole or in part.   This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred, 

without the prior, express, and written consent of the Town.  Any attempted unauthorized assignment, 

sublease, or license to occupy shall be void, and shall terminate this Agreement at the Town's option. 

12. Indemnification. Each party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its

officers, agents and employees from and against any and all expenses, claims, lawsuits, judgments and costs, 

including reasonable attorney's fees, that they may become liable to pay or defend as the result of the negligent 

acts, omissions or willful misconduct of the other party, or its officers, agents or employees, arising out of or in 



5 

connection with the other party's use of the Premises pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, nothing 

herein shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver of the immunity of the Town or any of its employees under 

the Maine Torts Claims Act. 

13. Insurance. The Y.M.C.A and the Town of Lyman. shall obtain and maintain in full force and

effect throughout the term of this Agreement (including any extensions) comprehensive general liability 

insurance with a company licensed to do business in the State of Maine in an amount not less than One 

Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.  The Y.M.C.A and the Town of Lyman. shall include the 

Toweach othern as an additional named insured on the Y.M.C.A.'s liability insurance in an amount not less 

than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; provided, further, that the Y.M.C.A and the Town of 

Lyman. shall provide each other a Certificate of Insurance showing the same at the time of commencement of 

this Agreement.  The Certificate of Insurance shall provide for a 30-day advance notice of cancellation to the 

Town.  

Regardless, the Town acknowledges that it promulgates the rules of usage of  the Park, and the 

Y.M.C.A. shall manage the Park in accordance with such rules, and as such it is agreed by the Town and the

Y.M.C.A. that in regard to the public usage of the Park, the Y.M.C.A. shall not be responsible or liable for any

claims stemming from the public usage of the Park, including, but not limited to, the usage of the public 

waterfront and the  playground and sports activities areas, the enforcement for repeated inappropriate uses or 

behaviors by the public patrons, and public indulgence of behavior altering substances. As to the behaviors 

mentioned, the YMCA shall first seek to address them but if any matter escalates, theYMCA shall involve law 

enforcement officials  as it has in the past. 

14. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement signed by the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, as of the date first above written, the parties hereto have set their hands 

and seals by their authorized representatives. 

INHABITANTS OF THE TOWN OF LYMAN 

William Single Selectmen’s Chair David Dulong; Vice Chair 

Thomas Guillemette John E. Tibbetts; 

Ralph “Rusty” Blackington Witness: 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt



6 

Nancy Brandt; Selectmen’s Clerk 

SANFORD/SPRINGVALE Y.M.C.A. 

  By: Andrew Orazio 
Its:   Chief Executive Officer 



Handicap Ramp for side door 

Estimate from Thynge Paving – not to exceed $2,500 

Can take from either Capital Improvement or Town Hall Reserve 

Capital Improvement = $106,843 

Town Hall Reserve = $23,135 

ITEM #7: (b.) Handicap ramp expense info



ITEM #7: (c.) Field Use Request Form






